
Borough of Tenafly 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2013 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Peter Rustin and Council members Anthony Barzelatto, Barry 
Honig, Martha Kerge, Nadia LaMastra, Jon Warms, and Mark Zinna 

 
ABSENT:        None 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Borough Administrator Jewel Thompson-Chin 

Borough Attorney William R. McClure 
 

At 7:49 p.m. Mayor Rustin read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement: “In compliance 

with the Open Public Meetings Act P.L. 1975, chapter 231, the notice requirements have 
been satisfied. Meeting dates for the year are listed in the Annual Agenda; copies are sent to 
the Record, Suburbanite, and Northern Valley News and posted on the bulletin board in the 
lobby of the Municipal Center.” 
 
The Salute to the Flag was led by Mayor Peter Rustin. 
 
Motion by C. LaMastra, second by C. Zinna, and all other members voting in favor, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the November 26, 2013 Closed Session (not to be 
released), November 26, 2013 Work Session, November 26, 2013 Regular Meeting, and the 
December 3, 2013 Closed Session (not to be released) are approved. 
 
REVISIONS TO AGENDA: 
None. 
 
PRESENTATIONS - Proclamation for DPW Director J. Robert Beutel 
Mayor Rustin commented that this moment is special for Tenafly but is tinged with a little 
bit of sadness for everyone. He advised that Bob Beutel, DPW Director is retiring after 
serving Tenafly for 40 years. He read a proclamation in his honor and presented him with a 
clock. Mayor Rustin finished by stating that with Mr. Beutel at the helm, he never had to 
worry about whether things would be done right and remarked that Mr. Beutel is truly 
going to be missed.  
 
AUDIENCE REMARKS FOR AGENDA ITEMS:  
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
#R13-428/Approve Expenditures as of December 4, 2013 
#R13-429/Schedule 2013 Recess/2014 Reorganization Meeting 
#R13-430/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 40 Forest Road 
#R13-431/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 224 Highwood Avenue 
#R13-432/Authorize Recreation Refunds – December 2013 
#R13-433/Execute Developer’s Agreement – Charnow Associates, LLC 
#R13-434/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 112 Churchill Road 
#R13-435/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 82 Oak Street 
#R13-436/Authorize Requests for Proposals – Architectural Services for Renovation of the 
         Department of Public Works 
#R13-437/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 10 Benjamin Road 
#R13-438/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 83 Norman Place 
#R13-439/Authorize Extension of Solid Waste Services Contract  
#R13-440/Authorize 2013 Budget Line Item Transfers 
#R13-441/Authorize Tree Mitigation Escrow Refund – 353 East Clinton Avenue 
#R13-442/Approve Raffle Application – RA1065 
 
Motion by C. Kerge, second by C. LaMastra that the Consent Agenda be approved. 
 
On a roll call, the vote on the Consent Agenda was recorded as follows: 
 

C. Barzelatto:   aye   C. LaMastra:   aye  
C. Honig:        aye   C. Warms:         aye 
C. Kerge:         aye   C. Zinna:      aye 



 
All members present voting in favor, the Consent Agenda was approved. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Councilwoman Kerge The Library Board met last night. There will be an 

event in May, coordinated by Alice Rigney, in which 
the works of Tenafly’s past artists will be displayed. 

 
The Board of Adjustment heard 3 applications. Two 
applications were approved. The third application 
was a couple requesting to take down a historic-
looking house on the corner of Park Street and 
Highwood Avenue and rebuild. Several neighbors 
attended the meeting and expressed their 
disapproval. The Board of Adjustment ultimately 
denied the application. 

 

 The Police Commission met and heard a general 
report on events that are taking place in the Police 
Department. 

 
 The Historic Preservation Commission met and 

postposed the decision on the possible historic 
designation of 53 Knickerbocker Road to January 
9th.  

 
Councilman Warms The Environmental Commission is holding an 

energy rebate session this evening and 
representatives from PSE&G are in attendance.  

 
 The Nature Center will hold its annual dinner on 

March 30th at the Clinton Inn. Winter Camp will be 
held from January 1st through January 5th and will 
be held again during the break in February.  

 
 The Chamber of Commerce held its annual 

Christmas party at Axia. They had a very successful 
year with membership increasing from 42 to 69 
members.  

 
 
The time came to hold the Public Hearing. Committee Reports will resume at the conclusion 
of the Public Hearing.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 13-28: 

 
The Borough Clerk read into the record: 
 
The following ordinance published herewith was first read by title only on November 26, 
2013, and posted on the bulletin board of the lobby of the municipal center. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 13-28 - AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE TENAFLY BOARD OF EDUCATION WHEREBY THE BOROUGH 
SHALL BE GRANTED CERTAIN RIGHTS TO USE THE REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS 
GEISSINGER FIELD FOR RECREATIONAL PURPOSES IN EXCHANGE FOR THE SHARING 
OF COST OF IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED TO EXPAND THE RECREATIONAL VALUE OF 
SAID PROPERTY 
 
Public Comments on Ordinance 13-28. 
 
Linda Ballan, 11 Delaney Place, stated that she is a member of Peaceful Commons, a group 
opposed to the lights and turf at Geissinger Field and the use of open space funds for this 
purpose. She read a letter that had been submitted to the Mayor and Council, Borough 
Clerk, and newspapers yesterday stating the group’s reasons for being opposed to the use of 
the Open Space Trust for this project and the group’s objections to the agreement put forth 
in Ordinance 13-28. 
 



Fred Robbins, Sunset Lane, explained that this project will bring with it additional bus and 
auto pollution, traffic, and litter and noted that these items are not addressed in license 
agreement. He questioned whether a police officer or crossing guard will be assigned to 
address parking and pedestrian safety or if there will be restrictions for the parking of 
buses. He expressed his concern that the agreement does not mention specifics regarding 
the mitigation of noise or a proposed schedule for light usage. He believes that the residents 
should be presented with said schedule prior to this vote taking place.  
 
Paul Ascione, 29 George Street, questioned whether the cost to run the lights and the 
maintenance of the lights has been determined and if this money has been budgeted. 
 
Peter Grimm, Jefferson Avenue, expressed his concern about the sound and asked that 
there be a limit on the noise. 
 
Max Basch, 140 Magnolia Avenue, Council-Elect, noted that open space funds are to be 
used to acquire open space and only if open space does not exist are they to be used for an 
auxiliary purpose. He noted that a survey of available open space was never conducted and 
feels that this use of funds may be abusive or illegal. He expressed his belief that the 

contract is a sham and non-enforceable. He pointed out that the money for open space was 
allocated through a referendum and he feels that Council has a fiduciary duty to put the 
question to the public on whether to spend these funds in this fashion.  He asked his 
colleagues to postpone this vote until he and Council-Elect Park are seated.  
 
Harold Olejarz, 13 Esmond Place, remarked that it is really unfair and disrespectful to the 
community to spend this money without including specific information on time limits within 
the agreement.  
 
Margaret Robbins, 91 Sunset Lane, noted that over 350 homes in the area will be affected 
by the light and traffic intrusion. She expressed her opinion that a schedule of usage 
should have been included. 
 
Hilda Solari, 99 Jefferson Avenue, explained that she lives on the corner of Jefferson 
Avenue and Virgina Street and although Virginia is a one-way street, many people make a 
u-turn in her driveway when there are games at the field, jeopardizing the safety of the 
children in the area. She expressed her opposition to open space funds being spent on a 
Board of Education infrastructure project. 
 
Motion by C. Barzelatto, second by C. Zinna that Ordinance13-28 be passed on second and 
final reading and is hereby adopted and notice of same shall be published according to law. 
 
C. Honig commented that although he supports having the lights and turf, he feels that it is 
inappropriate to use open space money for this project and would like to see it paid for in a 
different way. He assured residents that their concerns will be addressed to ensure minimal 
intrusion into their lives, but noted that there is the need to balance the concerns of the few 
against the many. He stated that he will vote against this ordinance as he believes that this 
agreement and use of the open space trust to fund this project are breaking the trust of the 
residents of this town.  
 

C. Zinna expressed that he supports the use of the trust fund money for this purpose as the 
referendum called for its use to include recreation. He noted that the residents voted to 
approve that language through a referendum. He explained that the Joint Use Committee 
has been working on putting this document together for 6 months and is not rushing 
through the process. He stated that he supports the greatest number of this community 
and will be voting in favor of this ordinance. 
 
C. LaMastra read a statement from the Recreation Board supporting this agreement as they 
feel that it will allow the expansion of programs.  
 
C. Barzelatto expressed his opinion that this money is being well spent on the children of 
Tenafly who are in need of additional field space. He assured the public that this field will 
be used strictly for athletics and agrees that the hours do need to be specified to ensure 
that the field will be used in a timeframe that will be acceptable to all.  
 
C. LaMastra inquired whether the Board of Education agreed to the changes that were 
discussed last week. Borough Attorney McClure confirmed that this agreement does include 
those changes and they have been agreed to by the Board of Education. She stated that she 
does not support the use of the open space funds for this purpose and will be voting no this 
evening.  
 



C. Kerge expressed her opinion that in order to be competitive as a prime town, there is the 
need to have turf and lighting at Geissinger Field. She stated that she agrees that there 
should have been a schedule that works to protect residents from noise and lights during 
unsuitable hours, but believes that those issues can be worked out. She then questioned 
whether this use of funds is illegal. 
 
Borough Attorney McClure advised that these funds are being used for one of the primary 
uses included in the interpretive statement. He then read the interpretive statement. He 
noted that acquisition is defined in the enabling statute in New Jersey authorizing the 
collection of the open space funds and specifically states that acquire means an interest in 
real estate by lease or lesser interest. As result of this agreement, he explained that Tenafly 
is acquiring the right for the use of the field. C. Honig commented that this agreement gives 
the Borough no rights and he would not consider it to be an appropriate interest. Borough 
Attorney McClure responded that he is not going to disagree that this agreement is loose in 
terms of the number of hours, but noted that it is an agreement between related parties. 
 
On a roll call, the vote was recorded as follows: 
 

C. Barzelatto:   aye   C. LaMastra:   nay  
C. Honig:        nay   C. Warms:         aye 
C. Kerge:         aye   C. Zinna:      aye 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS (continued): 
 
Councilwoman LaMastra The Recreation Board met and reported on the 

Annual Football Dinner which was attended by 200 
people to recognize the players and cheerleaders. 
Recreation will be offering coed spring volleyball for 
adults. Recreation has a Facebook page and it is 
used to communicate information on programs that 
are being offered. There was discussion about the 
bicycles that were to be auctioned. Residents who 
have received scholarships are being contacted to 
see if they are interested in the bike giveaway and 
any remaining bikes will be donated. December 18th 
is the Visit with Santa and January 2nd will be a 
Superbowl-themed cook-off. 

 
Councilman Barzelatto C. Barzelatto advised that he and Borough Clerk 

Aportela-Hernandez would like to meet with TVAC 
to discuss the CERT program and asked that C. 
LaMastra contact them to schedule said meeting. 

 
 The Fire Department held its election and C. 

Barzelatto will give this report at the Reorganization 
Meeting.  

 
Councilman Zinna No report. 

 
C. Honig asked for an update on 311 Tenafly Road. Mayor Rustin advised that they are 
putting their financing together. Borough Attorney McClure is to contact the attorney for 
this project and report back with a status.  
 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
C. LaMastra questioned whether there will be discussion on the BID banners this evening. 
Mayor Rustin pointed out that the Administrator’s Report included a follow-up from Chief 
Chamberlain and DPW Director Beutel. He noted that Chief Chamberlain did have an issue 
with one of the intersections. 
AUDIENCE REMARKS FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None. 
 
MAYOR’S REMARKS: 
 
Mayor Rustin remarked that the role of an elected official is a balancing act. He expressed 
his support of the Geissinger Field project as he believes that it will have a beneficial impact 
on Tenafly’s recreational programs. He agreed with the concerns expressed regarding the 
agreement, but noted that it is unfair to compare this agreement with a real estate 



transaction as the Borough has a longstanding relationship with the Board of Education. As 
this project is considered development of recreational land, Mayor Rustin stressed the fact 
that it is the Borough Attorney’s legal opinion that the open space funds can be used in this 
manner. He noted that all of the parties involved in this agreement are elected officials and 
are determined to work for the quality of life of the residents by ensuring that the hours of 
usage are reasonable and noise will be kept to a minimum. He commented that he does 
notlike to see residents leave unhappy and he will do everything in power to ensure that the 
concerns expressed this evening are addressed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
As there was no further business to come before the Council, on a motion by C. Honig, 
second by C. LaMastra, and unanimously carried, to adjourn this meeting.  The meeting 
was recessed at 9:00 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Lissette Aportela-Hernandez, MPA, RMC 

       Borough Clerk 


